

MINUTES AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 19 February 2025

Commencing at 5:30 pm Council Chambers Shire of Narrogin 89 Earl Street Narrogin WA 6312

The Chief Executive Officer recommends the endorsement of these minutes at the next Audit Advisory

Committee Meeting.

Signed: Date 20 February 2025

These minutes were confirmed at the Audit Advisory Committee Meeting held on	
Signed:(Presiding Person at the meeting at which minutes were confirmed)	

DISCLAIMER

Council and Committee agendas, recommendations, minutes and resolutions are subject to confirmation by the Council or Committee and therefore, prior to relying on them, one should refer to the subsequent meeting of Council or the Committee with respect to their accuracy.

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Narrogin for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council/Committee meetings or during formal/informal conversations with staff.

The Shire of Narrogin disclaims any liability for any loss whatsoever and howsoever caused arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council/Committee meetings or discussions. Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement does so at that person's or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the broad disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for a license, any statement or limitation or approval made by a member or officer of the Shire of Narrogin during the course of any meeting is not intended to be and is not taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Narrogin. The Shire of Narrogin warns that anyone who has an application lodged with the Shire of Narrogin must obtain and should only rely on WRITTEN CONFIRMATION of the outcome of the application, and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Narrogin in respect of the application.

Please note that meetings may be recorded for minute taking purposes.

CONTENTS

Ager	nda Item	Page
1.	OFFICIAL OPENING/ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS	4
2.	RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSEN	CE 4
3.	DECLARATION OF INTEREST BY ELECTED MEMBERS AND COUNCIL E IN MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE MEETING AGENDA	MPLOYEES 4
4.	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS	5
5.	ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PERSON PRESIDING WITHOUT DISCUSSION	N 5
6.	MATTERS WHICH REQUIRE DECISIONS	6
	6.1 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT RETURN 2024	6
7.	CLOSURE OF MEETING	10

AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 19 FEBRUARY 2025

1. OFFICIAL OPENING/ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS

The Presiding Member Mr Leigh Ballard declared the meeting open at 5:33 pm.

2. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Committee Members (Voting)

Mr L Ballard – Shire President

Cr G Broad - Deputy Shire President

Cr J Pomykala

Cr T Wiese

Cr R McNab

Guests

Nil

Staff

Mr D Stewart - Chief Executive Officer

Mr T Evans - Executive Manager Technical & Rural Services

Mr I Graham – Executive Manager Corporate & Community Services

Mrs L Webb – Executive Support Coordinator

Apologies

Cr M Fisher

Cr C Bartron

Mr A Awang - Executive Manager Development & Regulatory Services

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST BY ELECTED MEMBERS AND COUNCIL EMPLOYEES IN MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE MEETING AGENDA

Name	Item No	Interest	Nature
Nil			

4. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION

Moved: Cr Wiese Seconded: Cr Broad

That the minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee Meeting held 11 December 2024 be

confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings.

CARRIED 5/0

For: President Ballard, Cr Broad, Cr Pomykala, Cr Wiese, Cr McNab

Against: Nil

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PERSON PRESIDING WITHOUT DISCUSSION

Nil

6. MATTERS WHICH REQUIRE DECISIONS

6.1 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE AUDIT RETURN 2024

File Reference	14.1.1			
Disclosure of Interest	Neither the Author nor Authorising Officer have any Impartiality, Financial or Proximity Interest that requires disclosure.			
Applicant	Nil			
Previous Item Numbers	Nil			
Date	15 January 2025			
Author	Lily Webb – Executive Support Coordinator			
Authorising Officer	Dale Stewart - Chief Executive Officer			
Attachments				
1. Compliance Audit Return 2024				

Summary

The completed annual Compliance Audit Return for calendar year 2024 is presented to the Audit Advisory Committee for consideration.

Background

It is a requirement of all Local Governments to complete the annual Compliance Audit Return as part of its regulatory obligations to the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries.

Consultation

Consultation has been undertaken with:

- Chief Executive Officer:
- Executive Manager Corporate & Community Services;
- Manager Corporate Services; and
- Business Development and Innovation Officer.

Statutory Environment

The following statutory provisions apply:

- Local Government (Audit) Regulations Regulation 14 Compliance audit return to be reviewed by Audit Committee and report made to Council.
- Local Government (Audit) Regulations Regulation 15 once considered by Council, the return is
 to be signed by President and CEO and lodged with the Department by 31 March.

Policy Implications

There are no known policy implications on this matter.

Sustainability & Climate Change Implications

Environmental – There are no known significant environmental implications associated with the adoption of the Compliance Audit Return.

Economic - There are no known significant economic implications associated with the adoption of the Compliance Audit Return.

Social - There are no known significant social implications associated with the adoption of the Compliance Audit Return.

Financial Implications

There are no known relevant financial implications.

Strategic Implications

Shire of Narrogin Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027					
Objective 4. Civic Leadership Objective (Continually enhance the Shire's organisational capacity to service the needs of a growing community)					
Outcome: 4.1 An efficient and effective organisation					
Strategy:	4.1.1	Continually improve operational efficiencies and provide effective services			
Strategy:	4.1.2	Continue to enhance communication and transparency			

Comment/Conclusion

The Compliance Audit Return for the 2024 calendar year has been completed and is submitted for review. Of the ninety-four (94) questions posed by the Department, there was one (1) instance of non-compliance. This relates to an officer with delegated authority to issue building permits, who fell under the requirements of section 5.74(b) of the Local Government Act 1995 (designated employee).

Under the Act, the officer was required to submit a Primary Return within three (3) months of commencing employment. However, the Administration later discovered that this had neither been requested nor submitted within the required timeframe. The oversight was subsequently rectified, with the officer providing both a Primary Return and an Annual Return. It is also noted that the officer has since left the organisation and had not exercised the delegation during their tenure.

While this constitutes a reportable non-compliance, no penalties apply to the organisation as a result.

As per the Local Government (Audit) Regulations, this item will be presented to the Audit Advisory Committee Meeting, scheduled for 19 February 2025. The Return has been recommended to Council by Officers.

Voting Requirements

Simple Majority

OFFICERS' RECOMMENDATION

Moved: Cr Pomykala Seconded: Cr McNab

That it be a recommendation to Council that:

That with respect to the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries 'Compliance Audit Return for Calendar Year 2024, the Council adopt the return, noting one (1) matter of non-compliance, amongst the ninety-four (94) questions asked by the Department and request the Chief Executive Officer to lodge the return no later than 31 March 2025.

CARRIED 5/0

For: President Ballard, Cr Broad, Cr Pomykala, Cr Wiese, Cr McNab

Against: Nil



COMPLIANCE AUDIT RETURN 2024

Com	Commercial Enterprises by Local Governments				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments	
1	s3.59(2)(a) F&G Regs 7,9,10	Has the local government prepared a business plan for each major trading undertaking that was not exempt in 2024?	No		
2	s3.59(2)(b) F&G Regs 7,8A, 8, 10	Has the local government prepared a business plan for each major land transaction that was not exempt in 2024?	No		
3	s3.59(2)(c) F&G Regs 7,8A, 8,10	Has the local government prepared a business plan before entering into each land transaction that was preparatory to entry into a major land transaction in 2024?	N/A		
4	s3.59(4)	Has the local government complied with public notice and publishing requirements for each proposal to commence a major trading undertaking or enter into a major land transaction or a land transaction that is preparatory to a major land transaction for 2024?	N/A		
5	s3.59(5)	During 2024, did the council resolve to proceed with each major land transaction or trading undertaking by absolute majority?	N/A		

Dele	Delegation of Power/Duty					
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments		
1	s5.16 (1)	Were all delegations to committees resolved by absolute majority?	Yes	220524.10		
2	s5.16 (2)	Were all delegations to committees in writing?	Yes	220524.10		
3	s5.17	Were all delegations to committees within the limits specified in section 5.17 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	Yes	220524.10		
4	s5.18	Were all delegations to committees recorded in a register of delegations?	Yes	<u>Delegations Register</u>		
5	s5.18	Has council reviewed delegations to its committees in the 2023/2024 financial year?	Yes	Yes		
6	s5.42(1) & s5.43 Admin Reg 18G	Did the powers and duties delegated to the CEO exclude those listed in section 5.43 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	Yes			
7	s5.42(1)	Were all delegations to the CEO resolved by an absolute majority?	Yes	220524.10		
8	s5.42(2)	Were all delegations to the CEO in writing?	Yes	Delegations Register		



9	s5.44(2)	Were all delegations by the CEO to any employee in writing?	Yes	<u>Delegations Register</u>
10	s5.16(3)(b) &	Were all decisions by the Council to amend or revoke a delegation made by	Yes	220524.10
	s5.45(1)(b)	absolute majority?		
11	s5.46(1)	Has the CEO kept a register of all delegations made under Division 4 of the Act	Yes	<u>Delegations Register</u>
		to the CEO and to employees?		
12	s5.46(2)	Were all delegations made under Division 4 of the Act reviewed by the	Yes	220524.10
		delegator at least once during the 2023/2024 financial year?		
13	s5.46(3) Admin	Did all persons exercising a delegated power or duty under the Act keep, on	Yes	
	Reg 19	all occasions, a written record in accordance with Local Government		
		(Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 19?		

Disc	Disclosure of Interest				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments	
1	s5.67	Where a council member disclosed an interest in a matter and did not have participation approval under sections 5.68 or 5.69 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , did the council member ensure that they did not remain present to participate in discussion or decision making relating to the matter?	Yes	OCM 270324 10.1.2, 240424 10.2.1, 240724 10.2.1, 271124 10.3.5 SCM 140824 6.1	
2	s5.68(2) & s5.69(5) Admin Reg 21A	Were all decisions regarding participation approval, including the extent of participation allowed and, where relevant, the information required by the <i>Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996</i> regulation 21A, recorded in the minutes of the relevant council or committee meeting?	Yes	270324 10.1.2 Yes 'left the room' 240424 10.2.1 Yes 'left the room' 240724 10.2.1 Yes 'left the Chambers' 271124 10.3.5 Yes 'left the Chambers' 140824 6.1 Yes 'left the Chambers'	
3	s5.73	Were disclosures under sections 5.65, 5.70 or 5.71A(3) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which the disclosures were made?	Yes	Yes	
4	s5.75 Admin Reg 22, Form 2	Was a primary return in the prescribed form lodged by all relevant persons within three months of their start day?	No	Delayed submission for the former Building Surveyor. Employment commenced 25/07/2022 and his Primary Return was submitted 01/08/24. The former employee had one (1) delegation, 10.1 Control of building matters.	



5	s5.76 Admin Reg 23, Form 3	Was an annual return in the prescribed form lodged by all relevant persons by 31 August 2024?	Yes	Files in BIDO Office
6	s5.77	On receipt of a primary or annual return, did the CEO, or the Mayor/President, give written acknowledgment of having received the return?	Yes	Files in BIDO Office
7	s5.88(1) & (2)(a)	Did the CEO keep a register of financial interests which contained the returns lodged under sections 5.75 and 5.76 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	Yes	<u>Financial Interests Register.pdf</u>
8	s5.88(1) & (2)(b) Admin Reg 28	Did the CEO keep a register of financial interests which contained a record of disclosures made under sections 5.65, 5.70, 5.71 and 5.71A of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , in the form prescribed in the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 28?	Yes	Financial_Interests_Register.pdf
9	s5.88(3)	When a person ceased to be a person required to lodge a return under sections 5.75 and 5.76 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , did the CEO remove from the register all returns relating to that person?	Yes	Files in BIDO Office
10	s5.88(4)	Have all returns removed from the register in accordance with section 5.88(3) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> been kept for a period of at least five years after the person who lodged the return(s) ceased to be a person required to lodge a return?	Yes	Files in BIDO Office
11	s5.89A(1), (2) & (3) Admin Reg 28A	Did the CEO keep a register of gifts which contained a record of disclosures made under sections 5.87A and 5.87B of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , in the form prescribed in the <i>Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996</i> , regulation 28A?	Yes	gift-register
12	s5.89A(5) & (5A)	Did the CEO publish an up-to-date version of the gift register on the local government's website?	Yes	gift-register
13	s5.89A(6)	When people cease to be a person who is required to make a disclosure under section 5.87A or 5.87B of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , did the CEO remove from the register all records relating to those people?	Yes	Files in BIDO Office
14	s5.89A(7)	Have copies of all records removed from the register under section 5.89A(6) Local Government Act 1995 been kept for a period of at least five years after the person ceases to be a person required to make a disclosure?	Yes	
15	s5.70(2) & (3)	Where an employee had an interest in any matter in respect of which the employee provided advice or a report directly to council or a committee, did	Yes	<u>Financial Interests_Register.pdf</u>



		that person disclose the nature and extent of that interest when giving the advice or report?		
16	s5.71A & s5.71B(5)	Where council applied to the Minister to allow the CEO to provide advice or a report to which a disclosure under section 5.71A(1) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> relates, did the application include details of the nature of the interest disclosed and any other information required by the Minister for the purposes of the application?	N/A	
17	s5.71B(6) & s5.71B(7)	Was any decision made by the Minister under section 5.71B(6) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995,</i> recorded in the minutes of the council meeting at which the decision was considered?	N/A	
18	s5.104(1)	Did the local government prepare and adopt, by absolute majority, a code of conduct to be observed by council members, committee members and candidates that incorporates the model code of conduct?	Yes	Adopted 24 February 2024, by Absolute Majority, Resolution 0221.016, and then reviewed 7 June 2021 and 26 April 2023.
19	s5.104(3) & (4)	Did the local government adopt additional requirements in addition to the model code of conduct? If yes, does it comply with section 5.104(3) and (4) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	No	
20	s5.104(7)	Has the CEO published an up-to-date version of the code of conduct for council members, committee members and candidates on the local government's website?	Yes	2021 code-of-conduct-for-council-members-committee-members-and-candidates
21	s5.51A(1) & (3)	Has the CEO prepared and implemented a code of conduct to be observed by employee of the local government? If yes, has the CEO published an up-to-date version of the code of conduct for employees on the local government's website?	Yes Yes	2023 employee-and-volunteer-code-of- conduct



Disp	Disposal of Property					
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments		
1	s3.58(3)	Where the local government disposed of property other than by public auction or tender, did it dispose of the property in accordance with section 3.58(3) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> (unless section 3.58(5) applies)?	Yes	MCYS & MO		
2	s3.58(4)	Where the local government disposed of property under section 3.58(3) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , did it provide details, as prescribed by section 3.58(4) of the Act, in the required local public notice for each disposal of property?	Yes	MO		

Elect	Elections			
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	Elect Regs 30G(1) & (2)	Did the CEO establish and maintain an electoral gift register and ensure that all disclosure of gifts forms completed by candidates and donors and received by the CEO were placed on the electoral gift register at the time of receipt by the CEO and in a manner that clearly identifies and distinguishes the forms relating to each candidate in accordance with regulations 30G(1) and 30G(2) of the Local Government (Elections) Regulations 1997?	Yes	register-of-electoral-gifts
2	Elect Regs 30G(3) & (4)	Did the CEO remove any disclosure of gifts forms relating to an unsuccessful candidate, or a successful candidate that completed their term of office, from the electoral gift register, and retain those forms separately for a period of at least two years in accordance with regulation 30G(4) of the <i>Local Government</i> (Elections) Regulations 1997?	N/A	
3	Elect Regs 30G(5) & (6)	Did the CEO publish an up-to-date version of the electoral gift register on the local government's official website in accordance with regulation 30G(5) of the Local Government (Elections) Regulations 1997?	Yes	register-of-electoral-gifts



Finai	nce			
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	s7.1A	Has the local government established an audit committee and appointed members by absolute majority in accordance with section 7.1A of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	Yes	OCM 251023 11.4.3 minutes-25-10-2023-(confirmed)
2	s7.1B	Where the council delegated to its audit committee any powers or duties under Part 7 of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , did it do so by absolute majority?	Yes	
3	s7.9(1)	Was the auditor's report for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 received by the local government by 31 December 2024?	Yes	
4	s7.12A(3)	Where the local government determined that matters raised in the auditor's report prepared under section 7.9(1) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> required action to be taken, did the local government ensure that appropriate action was undertaken in respect of those matters?	Yes	
5	s7.12A(4)(a) & (4)(b)	Where matters identified as significant were reported in the auditor's report, did the local government prepare a report that stated what action the local government had taken or intended to take with respect to each of those matters? Was a copy of the report given to the Minister within three months of the audit report being received by the local government?	N/A	
6	s7.12A(5)	Within 14 days after the local government gave a report to the Minister under section 7.12A(4)(b) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> , did the CEO publish a copy of the report on the local government's official website?	Yes	narrogin.wa.gov.au/documents/1702/audit- advisory-committee-minutes-11-12-2024- (unconfirmed)
7	Audit Reg 10(1)	Was the auditor's report for the financial year ending 30 June 2024 received by the local government within 30 days of completion of the audit?	Yes	



No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	Admin Reg 19C	Has the local government adopted by absolute majority a strategic community plan? If yes, please provide the adoption date or the date of the most recent review in the Comments section?	Yes	
2	Admin Reg 19DA(1) & (4)	Has the local government adopted by absolute majority a corporate business plan? If yes, please provide the adoption date or the date of the most recent review in the Comments section?	Yes	
3	Admin Reg 19DA(2) & (3)	Does the corporate business plan comply with the requirements of <i>Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996</i> 19DA(2) & (3)?	Yes	

No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	s5.36(4) & s5.37(3) Admin Reg 18A	Were all CEO and/or senior employee vacancies advertised in accordance with Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996, regulation 18A?	Yes	The Executive Manager Corporate & Community Services
2	Admin Reg 18E	Was all information provided in applications for the position of CEO true and accurate?	N/A	
3	Admin Reg 18F	Was the remuneration and other benefits paid to a CEO on appointment the same remuneration and benefits advertised for the position under section 5.36(4) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	N/A	
4	s5.37(2)	Did the CEO inform council of each proposal to employ or dismiss senior employee?	Yes	The Executive Manager Corporate & Community Services
5	s5.37(2)	Where council rejected a CEO's recommendation to employ or dismiss a senior employee, did it inform the CEO of the reasons for doing so?	N/A	



Offic	Official Conduct				
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments	
1	s5.120	Has the local government designated an employee to be its complaints officer?	Yes	The Executive Manager Corporate & Community Services	
2	s5.121(1) & (2)	Has the complaints officer for the local government maintained a register of complaints which records all complaints that resulted in a finding under section 5.110(2)(a) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	Yes	Nil Complaints	
3	S5.121(2)	Does the complaints register include all information required by section 5.121(2) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995</i> ?	Yes	The number of complaints recorded in the register of complaints, how the recorded complaints were dealt with, and any other details that the regulations may require.	
4	s5.121(3)	Has the CEO published an up-to-date version of the register of the complaints on the local government's official website?	Yes	<u>complaints-register</u>	

Optio	onal Questions			
No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	Financial Management Reg 5(2)(c)	Did the CEO review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the local government's financial management systems and procedures in accordance with the <i>Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996</i> regulations 5(2)(c) within the three financial years prior to 31 December 2024? If yes, please provide the date of council's resolution to accept the report.	Yes	22 February 2023 – 230222.012
2	Audit Reg 17	Did the CEO review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the local government's systems and procedures in relation to risk management, internal control and legislative compliance in accordance with <i>Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996</i> regulation 17 within the three financial years prior to 31 December 2024? If yes, please provide date of council's resolution to accept the report.	Yes	22 February 2023 – 230222.012
3	s5.87C	Where a disclosure was made under sections 5.87A or 5.87B of the Local Government Act 1995, were the disclosures made within 10 days after receipt	Yes	



		of the gift? Did the disclosure include the information required by section 5.87C of the Act?		
4	s5.90A(2) & (5)	Did the local government prepare, adopt by absolute majority and publish an up-to-date version on the local government's website, a policy dealing with the attendance of council members and the CEO at events?	Yes	Council Policy 1.15 Elected Member and Chief Executive Officer Attendance at Events Policy - Reviewed 26 April 2023
5	s5.96A(1), (2), (3) & (4)	Did the CEO publish information on the local government's website in accordance with sections 5.96A(1), (2), (3), and (4) of the <i>Local Government Act 1995?</i>	Yes	www.narrogin.wa.gov.au
6	s5.128(1)	Did the local government prepare and adopt (by absolute majority) a policy in relation to the continuing professional development of council members?	Yes	Council Policy 1.17 Continuing Professional Development – Reviewed 26 April 2023
7	s5.127	Did the local government prepare a report on the training completed by council members in the 2022/2023 financial year and publish it on the local government's official website by 31 July 2024?	Yes	*Apparent Error found in DLG document. 2022/2023 in question, rather than 2023/2024. The answer for both is yes.
8	s6.4(3)	By 30 September 2024, did the local government submit to its auditor the balanced accounts and annual financial report for the year ending 30 June 2024?	No	The Auditors received the CEO signed Annual Financial Statements on Monday 21st October 2024, submitted with Ministerial approval of the delay.
9	s.6.2(3)	When adopting the annual budget, did the local government take into account all its expenditure, revenue and income?	Yes	Council Resolution 260723.07, 26th July 2023

No	Reference	Question	Response	Comments
1	F&G Reg 11A(1) & (3)	Did the local government comply with its current purchasing policy, adopted under the <i>Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996</i> , regulations 11A(1) and (3) in relation to the supply of goods or services where the consideration under the contract was, or was expected to be, \$250,000 or less or worth \$250,000 or less?	Yes	Council Policy 3.1 - Purchasing
2	s3.57 F&G Reg 11	Subject to Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, regulation 11(2), did the local government invite tenders for all contracts for the supply of goods or services where the consideration under the contract	Yes	Request for Tender (RFT) 24/25-01 Supply of two Side Tipping Trailers Advertised from 19 July 2024, finalised 28 August 2024 Resolution: 280824.07



		was, or was expected to be, worth more than the consideration stated in regulation 11(1) of the Regulations?		
3	F&G Regs 11(1), 12(2), 13, & 14(1), (3), and (4)	When regulations 11(1), 12(2) or 13 of the <i>Local Government Functions and General</i>) <i>Regulations 1996</i> , required tenders to be publicly invited, did the local government invite tenders via State-wide public notice in accordance with Regulation 14(3) and (4)?	Yes	RFT 24.25-01 Advertised on the Shire's official website in the West Australian News Paper, local public noticeboards, and the Shire's social media.
4	F&G Reg 12	Did the local government comply with <i>Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996,</i> Regulation 12 when deciding to enter into multiple contracts rather than a single contract?	N/A	
5	F&G Reg 14(5)	If the local government sought to vary the information supplied to tenderers, was every reasonable step taken to give each person who sought copies of the tender documents, or each acceptable tenderer notice of the variation?	N/A	
6	F&G Regs 15 & 16	Did the local government's procedure for receiving and opening tenders comply with the requirements of <i>Local Government (Functions and General)</i> *Regulations 1996, Regulation 15 and 16?	Yes (Reg 15) Yes (Reg 16)	15(1) Yes - Advertised for more than 14 days 15(1) Yes - In at least 3 of the ways prescribed in LG (Admin) Regulations 1996, Reg 3A(2): (a) publication in a newspaper circulating generally in the State; (f) exhibition on a notice board at the local government offices and library; and (g) posting on a social media account administered by the local government.
7	F&G Reg 17	Did the information recorded in the local government's tender register comply with the requirements of the <i>Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996</i> , Regulation 17 and did the CEO make the tenders register available for public inspection and publish it on the local government's official website?	Yes	
8	F&G Reg 18(1)	Did the local government reject any tenders that were not submitted at the place, and within the time, specified in the invitation to tender?	N/A	
9	F&G Reg 18(4)	Were all tenders that were not rejected assessed by the local government via a written evaluation of the extent to which each tender satisfies the criteria for deciding which tender to accept?	Yes	Resolution 280224.07, Attachment 1. Evaluation Matrox (Commercial in Confidence – Under Separate Cover), 28 th August 2024.



10	F&G Reg 19	Did the CEO give each tenderer written notice containing particulars of the	Yes	
		successful tender or advising that no tender was accepted?		
11	F&G Regs 21 &	Did the local government's advertising and expression of interest processes	N/A	
	22	comply with the requirements of the Local Government (Functions and		
		General) Regulations 1996, Regulations 21 and 22?		
12	F&G Reg 23(1)	Did the local government reject any expressions of interest that were not	N/A	
	& (2)	submitted at the place, and within the time, specified in the notice or that		
		failed to comply with any other requirement specified in the notice?		
13	F&G Reg 23(3)	Were all expressions of interest that were not rejected under the <i>Local</i>	N/A	
	& (4)	Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 23(1) & (2)		
		assessed by the local government? Did the CEO list each person as an		
		acceptable tenderer?		
14	F&G Reg 24	Did the CEO give each person who submitted an expression of interest a	N/A	
		notice in writing of the outcome in accordance with Local Government		
		(Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 24?		
15	F&G Regs	Did the local government invite applicants for a panel of pre-qualified	N/A	
	24AD(2) & (4)	suppliers via Statewide public notice in accordance with Local Government		
	and 24AE	(Functions & General) Regulations 1996 regulations 24AD(4) and 24AE?		
16	F&G Reg	If the local government sought to vary the information supplied to the panel,	N/A	
	24AD(6)	was every reasonable step taken to give each person who sought detailed		
		information about the proposed panel or each person who submitted an		
		application notice of the variation?		
17	F&G Reg 24AF	Did the local government's procedure for receiving and opening applications	N/A	
		to join a panel of pre-qualified suppliers comply with the requirements of		
		Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 16,		
		as if the reference in that regulation to a tender were a reference to a pre-		
		qualified supplier panel application?		
18	F&G Reg 24AG	Did the information recorded in the local government's tender register about	N/A	
		panels of pre-qualified suppliers comply with the requirements of <i>Local</i>	-	
		Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, Regulation 24AG?		
L		The state of the s		



19	F&G Reg 24AH(1)	Did the local government reject any applications to join a panel of prequalified suppliers that were not submitted at the place, and within the time, specified in the invitation for applications?	N/A	
20	F&G Reg 24AH(3)	Were all applications that were not rejected assessed by the local government via a written evaluation of the extent to which each application satisfies the criteria for deciding which application to accept?	N/A	
21	F&G Reg 24AI	Did the CEO send each applicant written notice advising them of the outcome of their application?	N/A	
22	F&G Regs 24E & 24F	Where the local government gave regional price preference, did the local government comply with the requirements of <i>Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996,</i> Regulation 24E and 24F?	Yes	

Chief Executive Officer	Date
Mayor/President	Date

7. CLOSURE OF MEETING

There being no further business to discuss, the Presiding Member declared the meeting closed at 5:40 pm.